Derayah Pillar III Disclosure -2014 Prudential Disclosure Report

12/31/2014 Derayah Financial



Table of Contents

OVERVIEW	2
CAPITAL STRUCTURE	2
CAPITAL ADEQUACY	3
RISK MANAGEMENT	5
CREDIT RISK DISCLOSURE	8
CREDIT RISK MITIGATION	10
COUNTERPARTY CREDIT RISK MITIGATION	11
MARKET RISK DISCLOSURE	
OPERATIONAL RISK DISCLOSURE	
LIQUIDITY RISK DISCLOSURE	13



OVERVIEW

These disclosures have been prepared by Derayah Financial ("**Derayah**" or the "**Company**"), a Saudi Arabian closed joint stock company with commercial registration number 1010266977 licensed by the Saudi Arabian Capital Market Authority ("**CMA**" or the "**Authority**") under license number 08109-27 dated 23/06/2008 with authorised and paid up capital of SAR 152 million. Derayah has been granted licenses including dealing (agent, principal and margin lending), managing, advisory and custody and as such, is required to comply with the three "Pillars" of the Capital Requirements defined in Prudential Rules ("**PRs**"). These are:

- Pillar 1, which sets out the minimum amount of capital that Derayah needs to meet its basic regulatory obligations;
- Pillar 2: requires Derayah to determine whether Pillar 1 capital is adequate to cover these risks and additional defined risks. This is achieved through the Derayah's risk based Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process ("ICAAP") and is subject to annual review.
- Pillar 3, which require Derayah to disclose to market participants key information about its underlying risks, risk assessment, management, controls and capital position hence the adequacy of capital.

The purpose of this document is to meet obligations in respect of Pillar 3. Derayah confirms that there exists no legal impediments at actual or foreseen any liability that may require transfer of capital or repayment of any liabilities.

All figures in this document are correct as at 31st December 2014 unless stated otherwise.

Frequency of disclosures;

These disclosures will be published at least annually (or more frequently if appropriate) and as soon as practicable following material updates to Derayah's internal capital adequacy assessments. Given its size and complexity, Derayah assesses that this annual publication should generally meet its disclosure requirements. Therefore, these disclosures have been tracked with version control.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Derayah's capital structure comprised of following elements which forms a capital base;

- Paid-up share Capital: authorised and issued capital of SAR 152 million consisting 15.2 million shares @ SAR 10 each.
- Audited Retained Earning: represents accumulated profits/ (losses) which at the end of 2014 were SAR (19,812) million in respect of loss amount.
- *Tier 1 deduction*: deductions in the form of intangible assets amounting to SAR (4,752) million.
- *Tier 2 Capital*: comprised of an amount SAR 56 thousand on account of revaluation of investments.

Capital is held to ensure that a suitable operating margin is maintained in excess of the higher of Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 capital requirements. Pillar 2 capital requirements are determined using a risk-based approach that explicitly takes into account management's view of specific risk exposures.

Therefore base capital shall be greater of Pillar 1 capital requirements:

• Base capital SAR 127,492 million;



• The sum of market risk, credit risk and operational risk (Pillar I) requirements of SAR 39,828 million;

We have determined that, as at 31 December 2014, the base capital is as follows to reflect Tier 1 capital with applicable deductions.

Disclosure on Capital Base

Capital Base	December 2013	December 2014
	SAR '000	SAR '000
Tier-1 capital	-	-
Paid-up capital	152,000	152,000
Audited retained earnings	(63,274)	(19,812)
Share premium	-	-
Reserves (other than revaluation reserves)	-	-
Tier-1 capital contribution	-	-
Deductions from Tier-1 capital	(5,784)	(4,752)
Total Tier-1 capital	82,942	127,436
Tier-2 capital	-	-
Subordinated loans	-	-
Cumulative preference shares	-	-
Revaluation reserves	-	56
Other deductions from Tier-2 (-)	-	-
Deduction to meet Tier-2 capital limit (-)	-	-
TOTAL CAPITAL BASE	82,942	127,492

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Derayah ensures that it discharges fully its obligations that arise from the Prudential Rules by maintaining its capital above the minimum level set by the regulations. In this respect, Derayah calculates its capital adequacy ratio on the eligible proprietary investments and its risk taking activities by complying with the regulatory capital requirements as frequent as on a monthly basis.

Derayah's capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2014 was equal to 320% (3.20) which is well above the minimum required ratio of 100% (1.00).

It is Derayah's policy that it has sufficient capital to:

- meet regulatory requirements;
- keep an appropriate credit standing with counterparties by maintaining financial prudence; and
- maintain sufficient liquid funds to meet working capital requirements.

Calculation of the Derayah's capital resources requirement



The capital resources requirement of Derayah for regulatory reporting purposes is the sum of the credit risk, market risk and operational risk capital requirements.

Credit risk

Risk of loss resulting from fluctuations in the credit standing of issuers of securities, counterparties and any debtors to which Derayah is exposed. Derayah has adopted the defined approach for credit risk to calculate the credit risk capital charge requirement under Pillar 1 of the capital requirements defined in Prudential Rules. Considering that this is regulatory approach to calculate credit risk requirements which expand at various assets class level and vary from intent of trading exposure by allocating applicable risk weight.

Market risk

The market risk is mainly due to volatility in asset values of investment exposure which arises as a result of movements in relative assets prices. Derayah calculates its market risk capital requirement for Pillar 1 in accordance with prudential requirements defined in annex 2 chapters and as at 31 December 2014 had a capital risk charge on investment positions calculated in accordance defined guidelines in prudential rules.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, mechanisms, people and systems or from external events and it includes legal risk as well. Derayah follows the basic indicator approach for calculating the Pillar 1 capital requirements for operational risk. The operational risk capital requirement is therefore calculated as higher of the three years' average of gross revenues or one year overhead expense as per article 39 to 44 and annex 4 of prudential rules.

Disclosure on Capital Adequacy

Exposure Class	Exposures before CRM SAR '000	Net Exposur es after CRM SAR '000	Risk Weighted Assets SR '000	Capital Requirement SAR '000	
<u>Credit Risk</u>					
On-balance Sheet Exposures	-	-	-	-	
Governments and Central Banks	-	-	-	-	
Authorised Persons and Banks	86,462	86,462	17,292	2,421	
Corporates	-	-	-	-	
Retail	47	47	141	20	
Investments	35,277	35,277	86,933	12,171	
Securitisation	-	-	-	-	
Margin Financing	17,407	17,407	17,407	2,437	
Other Assets	9,552	9,552	51,367	7,191	
Total On-Balance sheet Exposures	148,745	148,745	155,733	24,240	
Off-balance Sheet Exposures	-	-	-	-	
OTC/Credit Derivatives	-	-	-	-	
Repurchase agreements	-	-	-	-	



			1	ī	-
Securities borrowing/lending		-	-	-	-
Commitments	-		-	-	-
Other off-balance sheet exposures	-		-	-	-
Total Off-Balance sheet Exposures		-	-	-	-
Total On and Off-Balance sheet					
Exposures	148,745		148,745	155,733	24,240
Prohibited Exposure Risk Requirement					
	-	-	-	-	-
Total Credit Risk Exposures	148	3,745	148,745	155,733	24,240
	Long	Short			
<u>Market Risk</u>	Position	Position			
Interest rate risks	-	-	-		-
Equity price risks	-	13,767	_		2,203
Risks related to investment funds	-	-	_		
Securitization/resecuritisation positions	-	-	_		-
Excess exposure risks	-	-	_		-
Settlement risks and counterparty risks	-	-	_		-
Foreign exchange rate risks	334	-	_		7
Commodities risks.	-	-			-
Total Market Risk Exposures	334	13,767			2,209
Operational Risk					13,379
Minimum Capital Requirements					39,828
Surplus/(Deficit) in capital					127,492
Total Capital ratio (time)					3.20
					0/20

RISK MANAGEMENT

i. Risk Management Purpose:

The aim of Derayah's Risk Management function is to establish effective risk management policies and procedures that ensure compliance with regulatory requirements. In particular, through the efficient implementation of these policies Derayah will be able to identify the risks relating to its risk taking activities, processes and systems and, where appropriate, to set the level of risk Derayah is willing to undertake as a risk appetite.

In addition, the risk management strategies and processes will facilitate the process of an on-going assessment and maintenance of the amounts, types and distribution of internal capital that Derayah considers adequate to cover the level of risks to which it might be exposed.

ii. Risk Management Policy:



This risk management policy is set and defined directly by the Board of Directors who has the full responsibility to update or amend it. The Board is also responsible for overseeing and approving the risk management strategy and policies, internal compliance and internal controls. The governing of risk and its supervision is with Board level Risk and Compliance committee, which has direct oversight on all risk related issues. Senior Management of Derayah is required by the Board to assess risk management and associated internal compliance and control procedures and report back on the efficiency and effectiveness of risk management practices.

The process of risk management and internal compliance and control includes:

- Identifying and assessing significant risks that might impact upon the achievement of the Derayah's objectives through preventive controls.
- Developing risk management strategies to manage identified risks, designing and implementing appropriate risk management policies and procedures.
- Monitoring the performance and improving the effectiveness of risk management procedures.

iii. Structure of the Risk Management Function:

Derayah has established a dedicated Risk Management Department to oversee all risks related with its business. Risk Management of Derayah is appropriately resourced and performs its responsibilities as documented and approved in the form of written policies.

The Senior Management in co-operation with Derayah's employees is responsible for the monitoring of the risks to which their respective departments are exposed to, and to report to the Risk Management. Risk Management department report to management level Credit and Investment Committee and Board level Risk and Compliance Committee in addition to this, risk management has direct access to Board.

The responsible governing committees are functioning with defined responsibilities for their governance oversight and they have established reporting, monitoring and authorities within their charters.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is defined as the potential that counterparty will fail to meet its obligations in accordance with agreed terms. The goal of credit risk management is to maximize returns by maintaining optimal credit risk exposure within acceptable parameters. Credit risk is inherent in the entire portfolio as well as in individual transactions. The effective management of credit risk is a critical component of a comprehensive approach to risk management and essential to the long-term success of the company.

Risk Management at Derayah monitors the credit risk to assist the senior management in developing quality counter-party base. Credit and Investment Committee chaired by CEO, provides the necessary oversight in risk governance, management and providing the assessment guidelines. Risk and Compliance Committee (Board Committee) reviews the performance of management and suggests corrective strategies in risk management. Management has implemented policies and procedures which formally documents following activities being undertaken to manage the credit risk.

Derayah has exposure to margin financing as part of its investments therefore, following controls to manage the credit risk:

 Established lending policies, approval authorization, single-party credit and portfolio concentration limits. Limits on individual clients have been established;



- Assigns risk rating before accepting the clients for screening purpose using credit bureaus information; and
- Monitors collaterals on continuous basis.
- Assess and reviews overall portfolios quality.
- Monitors and improves credit risk management techniques in order to implement the internal riskbased approaches on counter parties.
- Concentration Limits are in place, reviewed and monitored.
- Performs independent risk reviews periodically to validate the effectiveness of the credit management system.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of an investment will decrease due to movements in market prices and in particular, due to changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity and commodity prices. The associated market risk factors are the interest rate risk, the currency risk, the equity risk and the commodity risk.

The associated market risks are captured in policies:

- Equity risk, the risk that stock prices and/or the implied volatility will change.
- Interest rate risk, the risk that interest rates and/or the implied volatility will change.
- As preventive measure identifies, measures, monitors, and reports market risk using a combination
 of tools including securities analysis, value-at-risk and stress testing.
- Ensures that the Derayah's market limits are in line with its policies and prudential requirements.
- Appraisal of Limits defined on asset class level, geographic level considering liquidity as major element.

Derayah's Risk Management Framework incorporates market risk principles that aims to maintain prudent levels of exposure to market risks that may have adverse effects on profitability within the bounds of the company's risk tolerance.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or lack of internal control processes, mechanisms, people and systems or from external events and it includes legal risk as well. It is inherent in all Company's business functions and can occur from a variety of circumstances such as fraud, error, omission or system failure.

For this reason Derayah has in place a business continuity policy that in case of business interruption, it enables the preservation or at least the timely recovery and continuation of essential operations and functions. In addition, the exposure it has to its data providers is mitigated by ensuring the regular back up of its data and the maintenance, monitoring and update of its servers and networks and effectively built disaster recovery site that will be available online for its alternate recovery requirements. In addition to this has proper controls, authorization matrices and limits are in place with dual control concept on operations and well defined framework in respect of policies and procedures. Internal Audit and Compliance reviews are carried out to identify control weakness.

For calculating its capital requirements for operational risk the company follows the Basic Indicator Approach as described in Prudential Rules.

Liquidity Risk



Liquidity risk is the risk that arises when the maturity of assets and liabilities does not match. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of losses. Liquidity risk also arises from the lack of marketability of a security or asset that cannot be traded quickly enough in the market in order to prevent or minimize a loss or to make a profit.

To minimize its exposure to liquidity risk, Derayah has established procedures that enable to monitor on a daily basis its cash flows and to manage them properly through its Finance Department. This allows the Derayah to maintain sufficient cash and highly liquid current assets in order to be able to cover its present or future financial liabilities.

Other Key Risks

Business Risk

Business risk encompasses the exposure to uncertainty in the wider economic and competitive environment and the impact of that environment on Derayah's ability to carry out its stated business plan. This risk is managed with a long-term focus, assisted by appropriate management oversight and a documented diversified corporate strategy and business plan.

Reputation Risk

Reputation damage most often arises as an ancillary (but often the most potent) effect of the crystallization of other risks. As Derayah is an independent authorized person, reputational risk is particularly important to it. To mitigate this aspect Derayah has in place strong corporate governance framework and code of conduct in addition to directors and officers liability cover.

Concentration Risk

Derayah has as part of its business defined its investment policies to spread over various asset classes, geographic distribution therefore, concentration related with investments is minimized however, as overall business concentration Derayah has strategic business plans to minimize its concentration as business overall.

Compliance Risk

Operating in highly regulated environment may result in general non-compliances of regulatory requirements therefore to mitigate any financial and reputational impacts the Compliance function is responsible for monitoring adherence to regulatory standards and for reporting its findings to relevant senior management, appropriate committees and to the Board. The Compliance function is also responsible for the provision of technical regulatory/compliance advice and support.

Credit Risk Disclosure

Past due and impaired financial assets

Financial assets (other than available for sale investments and held for trading investments) are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss, if any, is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.



An assessment is made at each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired at the statement of financial position date. If such evidence exists, the estimated recoverable amount of that asset is determined and any impairment loss, based on the net present value of future anticipated cash flows, is recognized for changes in its carrying amounts.

A financial asset is past due when the counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due. An exposure is classified as impaired (the carrying value exceeds the amount to be recovered through use or sale) or non-performing when the principal, interest or fees remain unpaid more than 180 days after the due date when, following review, there are indications that the likelihood of full repayment is in doubt. These indications of impairment may include, but are not restricted to: non-payment of interest; a fall in credit worthiness; a reduction of cover/collateral below the covenanted minimum.

Provisions against lending arrangements

A provision is recognized if, as a result of past events, Derayah has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probably that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.

Derayah may make bad debt provisions which fall into two categories:

- Lending arrangements; and
- Other debtors

Lending arrangements principally arise in the Derayah's brokerage business where it has both short term and long terms receivables. The relevant Credit and Investment Committee will determine whether it is necessary to make a provision against a credit exposure. Non-performing exposures (where there has been non-payment of principal, interest or fees for a period exceeding 180 days) will not automatically merit the creation of a provision. Impaired exposures will always require the creation of an appropriate provision.

As at year end reporting period Derayah has no impairments to be disclosed under these disclosures.

Disclosure on Credit Risk's Risk Weight

	E	xposures after ne	etting and cred	ing and credit risk mitigation				
Risk Weights	s Authorised Margin persons and Financing banks		Investments	Other assets	Total Risk Weighted Assets			
0%					-			
20%	86,462	-	-	-	17,292			
50%	-	-	-	-	-			
100%	-	17,407	-	-	17,407			
150%	-	-	12,598	-	18,898			
200%	-	-	-	-	-			
300%	-	-	22,678	4,113	80,374			
400%	-	-	-	-	-			
500%	-	-	-	-	-			



714% (include prohibited exposure)	-	-	-	5,468	39,169
Average Risk Weight	20%	100%	229%	537%	
Deduction from Capital Base	2,421	2,437	12,171	7,191	

Disclosure on Credit Risk's Rated Exposure

		Long term Ratings of c	ounterparties
	Credit quality step	1	Unrated
Exposure Class SAR '000	S&P	AAA TO AA-	Unrated
Exposure Class SAR '000	Fitch	AAA TO AA-	Unrated
	Moody's	Aaa TO Aa3	Unrated
	Capital Intelligence	AAA	Unrated
On and Off-balance-sheet Exposures			
Governments and Central Banks		-	-
Authorised Persons and Banks		17,292	-
Corporates		-	-
Retail		-	141
Investments		-	86,933
Securitization		-	-
Margin Financing		- /	17,407
Other Assets		-	51,367
Total		17,292	138,441

Credit Risk Mitigation

Derayah considering its credit risk primarily arising out of margin lending business has adopted robust policies corresponding to its risk requirements which include various elements of risk mitigating techniques, including but not limited to detailed credit administration program and a detailed policy on collateral risk assessment supported by a comprehensive securities assessment model to evaluate the securities. Which considers key elements in securities admissibility and the selected securities are then mark to market on continuous basis;

Policies are based on scoring model taking the inputs from elements including but not limited to price volatility, profitability, turnover etc. and derive the results in aggregate weighted score for a security to be eligible to be accepted collateral within Derayah.

As the collaterals are listed securities which are available as against any margin lending positions the credit related policies cover valuation of collaterals and credit concentrations as various levels.

The following table gives details of the exposure value where the main types of collateral taken by

- Financial collateral, including cash and client portfolios to support client lending. Financial
 - collateral is marked to market daily and compared to loans outstanding.



Other assets such as bank deposits. Other assets are valued less often depending on the type of assets held.

Disclosure on Credit Risk Mitigation

Exposure Class	Exposures before CRM	Exposures covered by Financial Collateral	Exposures after CRM
<u>Credit Risk</u>			
On-balance Sheet Exposures			
Governments and Central Banks	-	-	-
Authorised Persons and Banks	86,462		86,462
Corporates	-	-	-
Retail	47	-	47
Investments	35,277		35,277
Securitization	-	-	-
Margin Financing	17,407	17,407	17,407
Other Assets	9,552	-	9,552
Total On-Balance sheet Exposures	148,745	17,407	148,745

Note: the numbers are taken without applying credit risk mitigation techniques.

Counterparty Credit Risk Mitigation

Derayah has written policies on counterparties e.g. banks and authorized person (entity) to place funds with. Based on these policies there is detailed methodology defined to assess the counter party risk which translates in a score for an entity to qualify having elements including but not limited to rating of an entity, capital adequacy of an entity, non-performing loans, corporate governance and the review of financial defaults disclosed by respective entities.

Derayah does not have any derivatives transactions on its exposure therefore, there is no qualitative information is available.

Market Risk Disclosure

Market risk is the risk that the value of a portfolio, either an investment portfolio or a trading portfolio, will decrease due to the change in value of the market risk factors. The standard market risk factors are stock prices, interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Derayah considers its exposure to interest rate risk to be significantly low, since its income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates, as Derayah has no significant interest-bearing assets. Therefore, its exposure to market risk relates with the exposure it has to equities and funds' investments. This arises mainly from its net open positions and from the general conditions of the markets it trades. To mitigate market risk elements Derayah's principal investment policies cover



appropriate range of each asset class from minimum to maximum exposure allowed along with loss tolerance level defined.

Measurement

Derayah calculates its market risk capital requirement for by adopting standardized approach for Pillar 1 in accordance with prudential requirements to segregate such exposures into various asset classes and define according to large exposures and excess exposures by applying respective risk charge for such exposures.

Derayah has following positions as at end of 2014 which are the primary driver against its risk charge on market risk.

Disclosure on Market Risk Management

Investments	Type of Investment	MARKET VALUE	COUNTRY	Capital Risk Charge
Equities Investments	DPM	13,767	Global	2,203
FX Risk	Currencies	334	USD	7
Market Risk Capital Charge				2,209

Operational Risk Disclosure

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, mechanisms, people and systems or from external events and it includes legal risk as well. It is inherent in all Company's business functions and can occur from a variety of circumstances such as fraud, error, omission or system failure.

For this reason Derayah has in place a business continuity policy that in case of business interruption, it enables the preservation or at least the timely recovery and continuation of essential operations and functions. In addition, the exposure it has to its data providers is mitigated by ensuring the daily back up of its data and the maintenance, monitoring and update of its servers and networks. In addition to this has proper controls, authorization matrices and limits are in place with dual control concept on operations and well defined framework in respect of policies and procedures. Internal Audit and Compliance reviews are carried out to identify control weakness.

Measurement

Derayah calculates the Operational Risk Charge as Expenditure-based approach for operational risk calculated at one years' 25% of overhead expense under Pillar I. However, in order to optimize the capital requirements Derayah may consider adopting other approaches (e.g. standardized approach) with prior approval from the Authority and appropriate disclosures.

Following is the operation risk charges positions as at December 31st 2014.

Disclosure on Operational Risk Management

Operational Risk	Gross O	perating Inco	ome	Average Gross Income	Risk Capital Charge	Capital Requirements
Article 39-44 and Annex-4 PRs	2012	2013	2014		SAR '000	SAR '000
1. Basic Indicator Approach	37,633	39,098	94,540	57,090	15%	8,564



	Overhead Expenses (Year -1)	Risk Capital Charge	Capital Requirements
2. Expenditure Base Approach	53,515	25%	13,379

Liquidity Risk Disclosure

Liquidity risk is the risk that arises when the maturity of assets and liabilities does not match. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of losses. Liquidity risk also arises from the lack of marketability of a security or asset that cannot be traded quickly enough in the market in order to prevent or minimize a loss or to make a profit. Derayah's liquidity and cash management policies have been prepared considering following main objectives;

- Identify the main sources of liquidity risk;
- Define the measurement, monitoring and controlling methodology and process with various internal as well as market indicators of potential liquidity problems at the Derayah;
- Provide a formal contingency funding plan (CFP) that sets out strategies for dealing with a liquidity crisis and the procedures for making up cash-flow deficits in emergency situations, as required under Prudential Rules;

Measurement

To minimize its exposure to liquidity risk, Derayah has established procedures that enable to monitor on a daily basis its cash flows and to manage them properly through its Finance Department. This allows the Derayah to maintain sufficient cash and highly liquid current assets in order to be able to cover its present or future financial liabilities.

Disclosure on Liquidity Risk Management

2012	2013						Actual 2	2014					
Actual	Actual	Jan-14	Feb-14	Mar-14	Apr-14	May-14	Jun-14	Jul-14	Aug-14	Sep-14	Oct-14	Nov-14	Dec-1
82,726	95,443	98,914	99,325	106,013	110,728	117,033	120,350	126,753	134,428	140,624	147,633	150,915	158,90
4,631	6,088	6,735	4,294	6,093	5,652	7,410	8,934	10,179	12,729	12,609	17,056	19,737	24,926
18	16	15	23	17	20	16	13	12	11	11	9	8	(
	Actual 82,726 4,631	Actual Actual 82,726 95,443 4,631 6,088	Actual Actual Jan-14 82,726 95,443 98,914 4,631 6,088 6,735	Actual Actual Jan-14 Feb-14 82,726 95,443 98,914 99,325 4,631 6,088 6,735 4,294	Actual Actual Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 82,726 95,443 98,914 99,325 106,013 4,631 6,088 6,735 4,294 6,093	Actual Actual Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 82,726 95,443 98,914 99,325 106,013 110,728 4,631 6,088 6,735 4,294 6,093 5,652	Actual Actual Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 82,726 95,443 98,914 99,325 106,013 110,728 117,033 4,631 6,088 6,735 4,294 6,093 5,652 7,410	Actual Actual Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 82,726 95,443 98,914 99,325 106,013 110,728 117,033 120,350 4,631 6,088 6,735 4,294 6,093 5,652 7,410 8,934	Actual Actual Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 82,726 95,443 98,914 99,325 106,013 110,728 117,033 120,350 126,753 4,631 6,088 6,735 4,294 6,093 5,652 7,410 8,934 10,179	Actual Actual Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 82,726 95,443 98,914 99,325 106,013 110,728 117,033 120,350 126,753 134,428 4,631 6,088 6,735 4,294 6,093 5,652 7,410 8,934 10,179 12,729	Actual Actual Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 82,726 95,443 98,914 99,325 106,013 110,728 117,033 120,350 126,753 134,428 140,624 4,631 6,088 6,735 4,294 6,093 5,652 7,410 8,934 10,179 12,729 12,609	Actual Actual Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 82,726 95,443 98,914 99,325 106,013 110,728 117,033 120,350 126,753 134,428 140,624 147,633 4,631 6,088 6,735 4,294 6,093 5,652 7,410 8,934 10,179 12,729 12,609 17,056	Actual Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 82,726 95,443 98,914 99,325 106,013 110,728 117,033 120,350 126,753 134,428 140,624 147,633 150,915 4,631 6,088 6,735 4,294 6,093 5,652 7,410 8,934 10,179 12,729 12,609 17,056 19,737